


U:\~ My Files\‐ RECORDS CLERK\2022\BOARDS and COMMITTEES\PLANNING COMMISSION\05 10 2022\05 10 2022_PC 22.02_Planning Comm Mtg Minutes.docx 
Records Retention: FIN‐33 Permanent 

Page 1 
 

City of Napoleon, Ohio

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, May 10, 2022 at 5:00 pm 

PC 22‐02 – Subdivision Re‐plat – 918 Park Street 
 

PRESENT: 
Commission Members    Tim Barry‐Chair, Suzette Gerken, Jason Maassel 
City Staff    Kevin Schultheis‐Zoning Administrator/Code Enforcement Officer   
Others    Brian Koeller‐Northwest Signal; Steven Duryea, Angela & Victor Gaucin,  
    Rick Miller  
Recorder    Roxanne Dietrich 

ABSENT 
Commission Members    Larry Vocke, Marvin Barlow 

 
Barry, Chairman of the Planning Commission called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm with a roll call 
noting a quorum was present. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
In the absence of any objections or corrections, the minutes of the February 8, 2022 Planning 
Commission were approved as presented. 

NEW BUSINESS  

PC 22‐02 – Subdivision Re‐plat – 918 Park Street 
Barry read the background on PC 22‐02.  An application for a public hearing has been filed by Steven 
Duryea of 918 Park Street. The applicant is requesting approval of a subdivision of a Re‐plat of Lot No. 
411402300000 within the city. The owner is requesting Lot No. 41140230000 be split into two equal 
parcels.  The request is pursuant to Chapter 1141 of the Codified Ordinances of Napoleon, Ohio. The 
property is located in an R‐2 Low‐Density Residential Zoning District. 

RESEARCH AND FINDINGS 
Schultheis presented his research and findings.  A subdivision in City Permit is for any planned 
development to be located in the R‐2 Low Density Residential Zoning District as per 1145.01(a) Table of 
Permissible Uses.  The scope of the project is: proposed Re‐plat of Lot No. 411402300000, to re‐plat part 
of the West half of the Southeast quarter, Section 14 Napoleon Township, City of Napoleon, Ohio.  The 
recommended conditions are:  All revisions made to the plans by the surveyor of the project must be 
reviewed by the City Engineer, (these have been approved by Chad Lulfs, City Engineer), prior to 
approval by the Board of Planning Commission. 
Mr. Duryea is asking to split the property equally to .914 acres.  
Barry stated there is a utility easement through there.  There will be no issues with setbacks or being 
able to get a house in there and keep our space?  Schultheis replied it will probably be a narrow home, 
but he should be able to fit it in, he can go right up to the easement line without crossing it.  Looks like 
he will have enough room on that side, he only has to do the 7’ on the west side.  Gerken asked that will 
be a new home build, right?  Duryea said not real sure, was not planning on building anything.  The plan 
was to buy another property in Napoleon.  I need a place to keep a camper, I put a coach in there when 
they redid Park Street and that is already in there.  A place is needed to temporarily store it.  Barry said 
in the future this could be a buildable lot is what we are concerned with.  There is water and sewer 
there. Maassel asked can a storage building be built in an R2, can a big garage be in there?  Schultheis 
said no, you have to have a residential dwelling first then you can have an accessory building up to 1,000 
sq. ft. Maassel confirmed it has to be residential first.  Schultheis‐yes.  Barry asked is outside camper 
storage allowed on your own property in that part of town?  Schultheis stated if there is no dwelling, it 



U:\~ My Files\‐ RECORDS CLERK\2022\BOARDS and COMMITTEES\PLANNING COMMISSION\05 10 2022\05 10 2022_PC 22.02_Planning Comm Mtg Minutes.docx 
Records Retention: FIN‐33 Permanent 

Page 2 
 

could be an issue with that.  Mr. Duryea is going to have to make sure that he stays away from that 
especially if the neighbors start complaining.  We don’t normally allow outside storage.  We have 
already gone through all the stipulations that he must follow.  Barry asked if we approve this, and 
someone does come and want to build, or if he sells or wants to do whatever there is nothing else we 
need to do?  Schultheis said nothing else.  Barry stated just wanted to make sure if there are stipulations 
that need to be put on there.  Schultheis replied it would simply be survey paperwork and that would be 
taken care of by me.  

Motion:  Maassel  Second:  Barry 
to approve PC 22‐02 Subdivision Replat at 918 Park Street 

Roll call vote on the above motion:  

Yea‐Maassel, Gerken, Barry  
Nay‐  
Yea‐3‐, Nay‐0. Motion Passed. 
 

The Planning Commission meeting continued with consideration of PC 22‐03 

 

 
Approved 
 
August 9, 2022  ___________________________________ 
  Tim Barry ‐ Planning Commission Chair 
 
 
   



 

U:\~ My Files\‐ RECORDS CLERK\2022\BOARDS and COMMITTEES\PLANNING COMMISSION\05 10 2022\05 10 2022_PC 22.03_Planning Comm Mtg Minutes.docx 
Records Retention: FIN‐33 Permanent 

Page 1 
 

City of Napoleon, Ohio

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, May 10, 2022 at 5:00 pm 

PC 22‐03 – Conditional Use Permit  
Restaurant Full Service at 2525 Oakwood Avenue 

 

PRESENT: 
Commission Members    Tim Barry‐Chair, Suzette Gerken, Jason Maassel 
City Staff    Kevin Schultheis‐Zoning Administrator/Code Enforcement Officer   
Others    Brian Koeller‐Northwest Signal; Steven Duryea, Angela & Victor Gaucin,  
    Rick Miller  
Recorder    Roxanne Dietrich 

ABSENT 
Commission Members    Larry Vocke, Marvin Barlow 

 
NEW BUSINESS  

PC 22‐03 ‐ Conditional Use Permit – 2525 Oakwood Avenue  
Barry read the background for PC 22‐03.  An application for public hearing has been filed by Angela 
Gaucin of 824 East Riverview Avenue, Napoleon, Ohio.  The applicant is requesting the approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit to operate a Restaurant Full Service (Top Dog), featuring a variety of hot dogs 
and various other food items located at 2525 Oakwood Avenue. The request is pursuant to Chapter 
1141 of the Codified Ordinances of Napoleon Ohio.  The property is located in an I‐1 Enclosed Industrial 
District. 
 
RESEARCH AND FINDINGS 
Schultheis presented his research and findings.  A Conditional Use Permit is required for a Restaurant 
Full Service to be located in an I‐1 Enclosed Industrial District, as per Napoleon City Codified Ordinance 
1145 Table of Permissible Uses.  An establishment maintained, operated, andIor advertised or held out 
to the public as a place where food and beverage are served to the public on demand from a menu 
during stated business hours, served in and on reusable containers, I’m sure they have other containers 
too, and dinnerware, to be consumed on the premises primarily inside the building at tables, booths, or 
counters, with chairs, benches or stools.  Schulthies asked A. Gaucin will there be carryout?  A. Gaucin – 
yes.  Schultheis continued the use will be harmonious with and in accordance with the general 
objectives, or with any specific objective of the City's Master Plan and this Planning and Zoning Code.  It 
is recommended this permit is issued to the owners of 2525 Oakwood Avenue (known as Top Dog) and 
shall last for the duration of their agreement.  The restaurant must meet all safety and health standards 
set by the State of Ohio prior to opening.  The Planning Commission may recommend such conditions or 
restrictions on the construction, location, use, and operation of a Conditional Use as shall be deemed 
necessary to adequately address the general objectives of the Master Plan and this Planning and Zoning 
Code after considering those things, as applicable, as listed in subsection (e).  Barry asked A. Gaucin to 
explain to the commission what their plan is.  A. Gaucin explained the plan is to open Top Dog.  There 
will be some gourmet hot dogs and other things on the menu we are residential as well.  Barry asked will 
this be mostly dine‐in, carryout or combination.  A. Gaucin said there will be dine in and carryout.  Barry 
said with all the truck stops down there, can trucks come down that far?  Schultheis said yes, actually 
trucks can drive down Oakwood, Independence.  Barry asked this is the old BilJax building?  Gerken 
asked will you utilize the whole building?  A. Gaucin replied the front part of the building will be the 
restaurant the back part will be for a day program for individuals.  V. Gaucin stated I do not see semis 



 

U:\~ My Files\‐ RECORDS CLERK\2022\BOARDS and COMMITTEES\PLANNING COMMISSION\05 10 2022\05 10 2022_PC 22.03_Planning Comm Mtg Minutes.docx 
Records Retention: FIN‐33 Permanent 

Page 2 
 

pulling up through there, maybe off to the side.  Schultheis reported it is my understanding Wood 
County has already approved and everything is ready to go.  Barry asked is that right?  A. Gaucin – yes.  
Schultheis noted it has been remodeled and everything has been updated, it is very nice.  Maassel said is 
a restaurant I‐1, typically not, right?  Schultheis responded no, that is why we need the Conditional Use 
Permit.  Gerken asked how many will you employ?  A. Gaucin said we are not sure; everyone is short 
staffed and does not have enough help right now.  We have five employees heading in that direction.  
Barry added we welcome any new business, congratulations. 
 
Motion:  Gerken        Second:  Maassel 
to approve PC 22‐03 Conditional Use Permit at 2525 Oakwood Avenue 

Roll call vote on the above motion: 
Yea‐Maassel, Gerken, Barry   
Nay‐ 
Yea‐3, Nay‐0.  Motion Carried. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion:  Maassel      Second:  Gerken 
to adjourn the Planning Commission meeting at 5:11 pm 

Roll call vote on the above motion:  
Yea‐Maassel, Gerken, Barry 
Nay‐  
Yea‐3‐, Nay‐0.  Motion Passed. 
 
 
Approved 
 
August 9, 2022  ___________________________________ 
  Tim Barry ‐ Planning Commission Chair 
 
 
   












	08 09 2022 Planning Comm Agenda - Copy
	05 10 2022_PC 22-02 Meeting Minutes
	05 10 2022_PC 22-03 Meeting Minutes
	PC-22-04

